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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST
TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and independent auditor’s report of the charitable
company for the year 01 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of both a
" Trustees' report, and a directors’ report under company law.

Structure, governance and management

Governance has continued to be a key area of focus for the Trust. The Trust Scheme of Delegation is now embedded
and understood at all levels. The Board of Trustees have a wide array of expertise and skillset that challenges and
supports the executive team of the Trust. A formal skills audit was carried out at the start of 2018/19 for the Board of
Trustees and each Local Advisory Board (LAB), which identified strengths and weaknesses. Where weaknesses have
been identified, a thorough recruitment process has been followed to fill any gaps. New Trustees are interviewed by
the Chair of the Trustees and a panel of Trustees. New governors on the Local Advisory Boards are interviewed by
the Chair and the CEO before going to the Board for ratification. The Chairs of the Local Advisory Boards meet with
the Chair of the Board and the CEO half-termly to ensure transparency and clarity of direction of the Board.

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee incorporated on 22 July 2009. The predecessor school
converted to academy status becomirig the Bedford Academy on 01 September 2010. On 01 April 2017, the company
changed its name to HEART Academies Trust and adopted new articles of association to allow it to operate as a Multi
Academy Trust (MAT). On 01 June 2017, Cauldwell School, Shortstown Primary School and Shackleton Primary
School all joined the MAT alongside the Bedford Academy. The charitable company's memorandum and articles of
association are its primary governing documents. ‘

The Trustees, who are also the directors for the purpose of company law, and who served during the year are set out
in the Reference and Administrative Details section on page 1.

The Trust had a total pupil capacity of 2,820 and had a total roll of 2,644 in January 2023 across its four schools
(2,524 at January 2022).

School Total Roll (January 2023) Pupil Capacity
The Bedford Academy . 1,312 1,440
Cauldwell . . 419 420
Shackleton 508 540
Shortstown 405 420
Total 2,644 2,820

In addition, Shortstown primary school had 76 children enrolled at its nursery.

Members' liability

" Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as

may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before or within one year of when they

ceased to be a member.
Trustees' Indemnities

No indemnities or guarantees have been provided to third parties by the charitable company in respect of any of its
Trustees.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees

In accordance with the articles of association, the Trustees of the charitable company are appointed as follows:

Up to10 Trustees appointed by the Members
Up to 6 Trustees appointed by the Sponsor
A minimum of 2 Parent Trustees appointed by Members if no provision is made for at least 2 Parent Local
Governors on established Local Governing Bodies.

e Providing the Chief Executive Officer agrees so to act, the Members may appoint the Chief Executive Officer
as a Trustee.
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¢ The Trustees may appoint co-opted Trustees. The Trustees may not co-opt an employee of the Academy
Trust as a Co-opted Trustee if thereby the numbers of Trustees who are employees of the Academy would
exceed one third of the total number of Trustees including the Chief Executive Officer to the extent he or she
is a Trustee,

Trustees (other than the Sponsors and the CEO) serve for four years and are eligible for re-election.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary,
induction will provide training in charity, educational, safeguarding, legal and financial matters. All Trustees are
provided with the information needed (including the Trustees Handbook, policies, minutes, budgets) to undertake their
role as Trustees. :

Organisational structure

The Board of Trustees, the majority of whom are non-executive, comprises those persons appointed under the Articles
of Association. The Board meets at least three times a year and has a number of sub-committees;

Finance & Operations Committee

Education Committee

Risk & Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Local Governing Bodies for each of the schools within the Trust

Each committee is formally constituted with terms-of reference and comprises appropriately qualified and experienced

“members. The Trust Board delegates specific responsibilities to its committees, the activities of which are reported to

and discussed- at full Board of Trustee meetings. Trustees review the number and role of committees on a regular
basis.

Day-to-day management of the company is undertaken by the Chief Executive Officer, supported by the Executive
Team,

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer and the Chief Finance Officer is the Principal Finance Officer.
The Trust does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Executive Team is the key management personnel of the Trust. Trustees are also senior management although
they feceive.no pay or other remuneration in respect of their role as Trustees.

The pay of the Chief Executive Officer is set annually by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of
Trustees, having regards to the Trust Executive Pay.policy and performance against objectives set the previous year.

The pay of other Executive Team members is also set by Trustees, again having regard to the Trust Executive Pay
policy, performance against previously agreed objectives and any recommendations made by the Chief Executive
Officer.
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Trade Union Facility Time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials | Full-time equivalent employee number
during the relevant period
3 3

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of Employees
0% 3
1% - 50% 0
51% - 99% . 0
100% 0

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total Cost of facility time (£'000) | £0
Total Pay bill (£'000) £14,236k
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time 0%

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activites as a

percentage of total paid facility time hours. 0%

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

The Harpur Trust is a related party by virtue of being a sponsor and ability to appoint Trustees Transactions with
related parties are detauled in the relevant note to the accounts.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The following statement summarises action taken during the period to introduce, maintain or develop arrangements
aimed at:
« providing employees with information on matters of concern to them
« consulting employees or their representatives regularly so that the views of employees can be considered in
making decisions which are likely to affect their interests
encouraging the involvement of employees in the Trust's performance
* achieving a common awareness on the part of all employees of the factors affecting the performance of the
Trust.
e The Trust's policy in respect of -applications for employment from disabled persons, the treatment of
employees who become disabled and the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons.

The Trust places immense value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed on
matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Trust. This is
achieved through formal and informal meetings, team briefings and internal newsletters/updates. Employee
representatives are consulted regularly on a range of matters affecting their current and future interests.

In respect of disabled persons, the policy of the Trust is to support recruitment and retention of students, staff and
Trustees/Governors with disabilities. Lifts, ramps and disabled toilets are installed and door widths are adequate to
enable wheeichair access to all the main areas of all the schools. The Trust does this by adapting the physical
environment, making support resources available and through relevant training. Our policy is to promote the career
development and promotion of disabled persons, irrespective of the nature of their disability and we will provide
whatever assistance we reasonably can do in order to support the individual in meeting their career goals, ensuring
that there is a ‘'level playing field' for all. In 2022 the Trust engaged the ‘Global Equality Collective’ - https://thegec.org/
- to support engagement with staff on matters relating to Equality, Diversity and Inclusion. Work with GEC will continue
into future academic years.
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Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

The Trust recognises the importance of maintaining good business relationships with its suppliers. We have a clear
procurement policy to ensure that suppliers are treated in an even-handed manner. The performance of, and
relationship with, key suppliers is constantly monitored to ensure that we treat suppliers fairly, ensuring that payment
terms are adhered to and that we comply with contractual obligations placed upon the Trust. We encourage an open
and ongoing dialogue with supplicrs to onsure that wo conduct our businese with them in a professional commercial
manner. Procurement ‘performance’ is reported to the Finance & Operations Committee on a regular basls to help
ensure appropriate scrutiny and challenge.

Objectives and activities

Our objects and aims, described below, put children at the heart of all that we do. We have described our main
achievements within the Strategic Réport and also how we have performed against our objectives. We are committed
to ensuring that we maintain strong and effective.relationships with students, parents and wider stakeholders in the
community. .

Objects and aims

The principal object of the charitable company is the advancement of education in the United Kingdom. It achieves
this object principally through the operation of HEART Academies Trust, the aim being to provide the highest possible
standard of education and pastoral care, maximising the life-chances of the students at all four academies operated
by the Trust.

Objectives, strategies and activities

The Trust has set priorities for 2022-2025 in four key areas in order that it can deliver on the Trust Vision and Values

1. Child wellbeing

2. Staff wellbeing

3. Sustainability

4. Engagement and communication

The Trust is committed to delivering on the five DfE areas that have been identified as critical to building a strong
Trust.

1. High quality and inclusive education: deliver high quality education across our academies, including for
.disadvantaged children and children with SEND, and operate fair access. Have effective central leadership
teams, strong school leadership and teaching, and use evidence-based curriculum design and

implementation.

2. School improvement: work quickly to improve standards within ali our schools, partlcularly transforming
previously under performing schools, and maintain appropriately performing schools.

3. Strategic governance: operate an effective and robust governance structure that involves schools and
"exemplifies ethical standards. Utilise the expertise and skills of the Board to oversee the strategic direction
of the Trust and hold leaders to account. Have a strong local identity, engaging effectively with parents and
the wider community.

4. Financial Management: strong and effective financial management, prioritising the use .of resources
including the estate, to deliver the best educational experience for children

5. Workforce: train, recruit, develop, deploy and retain great teachers and leaders throughout thelr careers,
proactively engaging in Initial Teacher Training and the Early Career Framework, supporting staff
development by using National Professional Qualifications and other evidence-based professional
development and providing them with opportunities to progress. Deploy the best staff in the schools where
they are needed most and prioritise staff wellbeing

In addition, the Trust is committed to growth through the addition of more schools. Trusts typically start to develop
central capacity when they have more than 10 schools. Scale is also what enables them to be more financially stable,
maximise the impact of a well-supported workforce and drive school improvement.
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Public benefit

The principal object and activity of the charitable company is the operation of HEART Academies Trust to advance,
for the public benefit, education for students of different abilities between the ages of 2 and 13. In setting the objectives
and planning the assoclated activities, Trustees have considered the Charity Commission's general guidance on
public benefit.

Strategic Report

Achievements and performance

During 2022 -2023 all HEART schools focused.on ensuring the highest quality educational provision for all children
and young adults. The cost of living crisis heavily affected all of our communities. All HEART schools are mindful of
the additional support needed for our families such that children are able to continue to access learning effectively.

There was a significant increase in the number.of pupils with special educational needs and/ or disabilities (SEND)
requiring further development of our dedicated SEND provision. Limited support in term of specialist provision places
in the Borough meant schools have had to provide more support for pupils with more complex needs than would have
been the case in previous years. All schools increased SEND training for staff, in some cases training more SENCOs,
to provide additional capacity and succession planning.

~ The ‘50Things’ Bedford application - launched in 2022 to support parents of children aged 0-5 - celebrated its first
birthday. We continue to monitor engagement with the app and impact of the service. 50Things has also provided
. more opportunities for HEART to work with local stakeholders, particularly Bedford Borough Council and local nursery
providers.

The Trust continues to be- successful in securing Condition Improvement Funding (CIF) to ensure our building
environments remains safe and conducive to leaming. During 2022 we completed CIF funded works to upgrade the
~ fire alarm systems at Cauldwell and Shackleton Primaries and in June 2023 our application was approved for funding
towards fire safety works, including fire compartmentation, at Shackleton Primary.

Last year the Trust also secured funding from the Harpur Trust to hire a Speech and Language Therapist (SALT) for
one day a week at each of the primary schools. The SALT project had a positive impact on pupil communication skills.
We have secured this funding for a further academic year. The Trust has strategic plans to upskill staff and parents
to sustain the support when the funding is no longer available.

The Trust schools collaborated on a range of enrichment projects, most notably with the HEART Choir performing at
various events throughout the year.

Bedford Academy

Bedford Academy continued its growth journey. The schoo! had 270 pupils in Year 7 compared to 252 in Year 8.
Projected figures indicate the school will grow to 1,800 pupils over the next five years compared to 1,335 last academic
year. The Bedford Academy sixth form continues to grow towards a target of 300 students across Years 12 and 13,
To accommodate the intake of an additional 40 students at Bedford Academy in September 2022, an extensive
programme of building improvement and conversion works took place to create additional teaching and learning
spaces. The works included the conversion of two Design & Technology rooms to provide an additional Science Lab
and a second Food Technology Room and the conversion of a pottery room to create a Staff room. Three staff
workrooms were repurposed to provide additional classrooms and Sixth Form study areas were refurbished and
extended. The school dining area received a complete make-over, including the introduction of a coffee bar, increasing
seating capacity to 400 covers per sitting. Externally, the netball courts were resurfaced and floodlights upgraded. To
accommodate projected growth rates approval was granted for new facilities to be built ready for September 2025
including additional classrooms and a new 3G artificial football pitch,

"An Ofsted inspection in March 2023 saw Bedford Academy judged Good in all areas. The grade reflected the
sustained improvement the school has delivered over the past 5 years. Curriculum development was highlighted;
however, it raised some inconsistency in the delivery of this curriculum as area for development. Behaviour and the
provision for pupils with SEND was praised alongside the ‘super-curriculum’ offer. The inspection also celebrated the
significant increase in the number of pupils studying a Modern Foreign Language.

In recognition of its excellent working practices in relation to student and staff wellbeing, Bedford Academy was
awarded the ‘Wellbeing Award for Schools’. The verification report noted that “Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health
is not an ‘add on’ at this school, it is part of school life, learning, and it goes beyond the school gates.”

-6-
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The sixth form Basketball Academy had a cohort of over 60 students in 2022/23, a USP for the sixth form provision.
The basketball team reached the Under 19’s national finals. Bedford Academy will open a football academy in 2023/24
and a Dance Academy to follow for 2024/25.

Cauldwell Primary School :

Cauldwell continues to be an oversubscribed school at the centre of the local community. The school’s Inclusion Hub
~ set up in 2021 - continued to meet the needs of the pupils with complex SEND. This provision was expanded to
meet the needs of pupils in Early Years (EYFS), Key Stage 1 and 2.

KS2 Readihg and Maths data outcomes were above national average, reflecting work on expanding vocabulary and
the strength of Maths teaching. Writing data at KS2 showed a decline, a trend reflected in all HEART primary schools.
" Improving writing is a key priority for rapid improvement in 2023/24.

The enrichment offered at Cauldwell allowed KS2 pupils to receive additional Reading, Writing and Maths learning
alongside access to a range of opportunities such as public speaking, music and sport.

EYFS faced the challenge of children arriving with ‘low levels of development as well as an increasing number of
children with Education and Health Care Plans (EHCP) and complex needs Whilst challenging, positive progress

". was clear for these pupils, supported by the school Inclusion Hub.

Shackleton Prrmary School

For the first time in many years Shackleton was oversubscribed in 2022/23. A new Headteacher was recruited in April
2023 following the departure of the previous incumbent. The new Head has introduced new approaches to help secure
high level of accountability at all levels. The curriculum was reviewed to ensure it remains appropriate and aspirational
for the children of Shackleton to ensure the highest possible outcomes.

An increase in the number of pupils with EHCPs and complex needs.(especially in EYFS and Year 1) accelerated the
creation of the ‘ARC’ (Additionally Resourced Classroom). The ARC provision allows for a bespoke curriculum for
specific pupils and follows the model of the Inclusion Hub at Cauldwell. There was also significant financial investment
to create a Year 1 environment to support a more holistic approach to meet the needs of the cohort.

Data outcomes did not improve as rapidly as hoped. Curriculum improvement work and strengthening teaching and
learning - reflected in the previous Ofsted inspection - did not fully come to fruition. The new Head focused on
accelerated improvement such that current Year 6 pupils leave in 2024 fully prepared for their next stage of education.

As at Cauldwell, writing was the area that most negatively impacted data outcomes. Writing is a clear area of focus
for 2023/24 with collaboration planned with all Trust schools to improve writing outcomes rapidly.

Shortstown Primary School o
Shortstown continued to provide an educational experience for 2-11 year olds. Both the pre-school and primary school
reception were full with a waiting list reflecting demand.

A restructure of the pre-school was undertaken to help provide a full EYFS curriculum, starting at aged 2. The ‘Good
Level of Development' (GLD) data for 2023 was the highest in the Trust owing to the preschool pravision in place.

Maths was an area of strength with national outcomes for both KS1 and KS2 inline or above national outcomes. KS2
outcomes for maths showed an increase of 30% reflecting work done in improving both the curriculum and teaching.

Writing, as with Shackleton and Cauldwell, was the limiting factor for the combined data outcomes. Writing will be a
Trust and school focus for 2023-2024.
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High Needs support
An increass in needs in early years in all three Primary Schools was an area of concern. Capamty was pulled into
early years at the expense of other areas. The Trust invested in two specialist hubs to support children with the highest
need. The hubs are designed to take this cohort of children out of the mainstream classroom for short periods of time
~where they can access specialist support before returning to their mainstream class. The two hubs are located within
Shackleton and Cauldwell. Cauldwell has been running their hub for two years so we are able to report back on the
progress:

- e High-needs pupils work with a small team of people who get to know their individual needs and can support
them to a high standard. This focus promotes independence and decreases ‘learned helplessness’ that can
develop in children with high needs working with a single adult all day, every day

¢ A number of pupils developed independent learning skills and can now access in class learning most of the

" time. Other pupils developéd and increased their attention, focus, social skills, basic skills, iIndependent
learning and are making steady progress. The Hub supports constant observation and evaluation to ensure
pupils receive the provision they need at all times.

e Use of Hub, facilitated by a SEND teacher, improved Learning Support Assistant (LSA) support in the
classroom. Building a highly skilled team of LSA's swapping between classroom and Hub support meant
LSAs could deliver SALT intervention 'and provide more in-class support when not supporting pupils in the
Hub.

¢ Rotating staffing in the Hub'each year is developing a better SEND support skill set in a wider group of staff
(historically certain LSAs were considered ‘the SEND needs people’ to the exclusion of others).

e As part of the intervention, a daily sensory circuits programme was established for pupils who need support
to regulate in the morning. Sensory circuits demonstrated a positive impact, with older pupils coaching
younger pupils. Benefits were demonstrated in physical development, communlcatlon and interaction whilst

building confidence and developing social interaction skills.

¢ Due to high levels of demand for the Hub, two pupils who used the Hub in |ts first year had to integrate back
into their mainstream classes fuill time. This transition proved very challenging and led to one child moving to
a reduced timetable. Cauldwell are now in liaison with the local children’s centre to help provide additional
space and capacity in school for a second inclusion hub room.

Summary

Itis clear across all Trust schools that the improvement and development work that has taken place over the past few
years is. starting to havé a real impact on educational outcomes. SEND provision is of a high standard across the
schools. Increases in the number of pupils with complex SEND is a concern, as is the level of support provided by
the Local Authority. The Trust focus on strengthening Early Years continued with a view that in the medium to long
term this work will help ensure pupils joining in Reception are better prepared for primary education.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Educational Outcomes

Primary data showed a varied picture. In some schools in some attainment areas HEART performed at national
attainment outcomes for 2023 (or 2022 where 2023 data was not available). Writing was an area of concern and a
priority for all schools in 2023/24.

Early Years (EYFS)
Reception children had their pre-school experience affected by Covid, evidenced with the low number of pupils arriving
not meeting the baseline for EYFS. Speech and language continued to be a significant barrier and the funded SALT's
worked with Reception children to address these barriers. While they may not have reached GLD, their progress was
significant.
- 1. 0% of children met the baseline expectation at Shackleton and Shortstown.
2. There were significant levels of SEND need in the Reception cohorts with 7 EHCPS at Cauldwell, 2 at
Shortstown and 2 at Shackleton. The Cauldwell and Shackleton hub provided tailored support for these and
other pupils.

Phonics at Cauldwell was in line with national outcomes. The majority that did not pass were close to the pass rate
and receiving targeted intervention. Shackleton data reflected work done in EYFS and Year 1 to build on the low GLD
and the impact of a new phonics scheme. An outcome of 72% was close to the national data, a real strength.

-8-
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Shortstown data reflected the cohort where only 50% achieved ‘Good Level of Development (GLD) in Reception. The
school brought in a new phonics scheme ready for 2023/24 to help ensure the best possible outcomes.

KS1

Maths was a strength at both Cauldwell and Shortstown with both schools exceeding 2022 national outcomes and
2022 Bedford Borough outcomes for combined. Writing and reading are areas of priority. Shackleton’s KS1 data was
significantly below national outcomes Changes were implemented to improve outcomes and ensure appropriate
support is put into place.

KS2

It is important to highlight the improvement in Maths at Shortstown from 2022. Outcomes lmproved by 30% and are
in line with national outcomes for 2023. Cauldwell data for Maths and Reading echoed prior year success, meeting
or exceeding national outcomes for 2023. Maths and Reading remained consistent at Shackleton, 5-7% lower than
Bedford Borough outcomes and significantly lower than national. A change in leadership at Shackleton and revised
development plans are intended to address many of the barriers to achieving success. Writing was the area that was
significantly below expectation$ for all schools. Writing data negatively affected the ‘combined’ score for all schools
and will be a Trust priority area for 2023/24. '

KS4: Bedford Academy
Data should not be compared with 2022. The Department for Education (DfE) and Joint Council for Qualifications
(JCQ) were clear national cutcomes should return to 2019 levels in 2023.

In terms of ‘Progress’ the school Progress 8 score was +0.01. Outcomes in some areas dropped from 2019, pupils
performed in line with pupils from a similar area with similar previous data. English and Maths have performed strongly
with positive value added. Basics 4+ and 5+ showed.a small drop from 2022 but increased from 2019, a national
picture. Greater focus is needed on those pupils who are on track to achieve Maths but not English. Analysis showed
54 students achieved a grade 4 in either English or Maths but not both. 46 students achieved a grade 5 in either
English.or Maths but not both. Converting these, the school would have delivered 73.8% at 4+, and 50% at 5+,
significantly above national. This is a key area of focus for 2023/24.

KSS5: Bedford Academy

The Bedford Academy sixth form offered 25 qualifications to meet the needs of the students in our community.
Unfortunately, outcomes for sixth form showed a decline in 2023 compared to 2022 with average grades falling from
C to D+. The fall in grade was a consequence of the Covid pandemic. The cohort of students had not sat GCSE
exams; instead their GCSE data was based around Centre and Teacher assessed grades. Students gained places
on A Level courses when in normal years they may not have achieved the course entry criteria. The purpose of
permitting students to enrol was to support them to continue their education in a familiar setting with continued pastoral
care following the disruption of the pandemic. Lessons have been learnt from this and subject criteria were revnewed
for the 2023/24 academic year.

Attendance

Bespoke targeted strategieé improved attendance and the recruitment of a Trust Education Welfare Officer will further
strengthen this area. .

Bedford Academy Cauldwell Shackleton Shortstown National
Overall Overall Overall o Overall o o
Attendance 91.3% Attendance 94.1% Attendance 92.5% Attendance 94.6% 99'8 %
PP o PP o PP o PP o

Attendance 88.8% Attendance 92.9% Attendance 90.8% Attendance 91.3%

Pupils with Pupils  with Pupils  with Pupils  with

SEN 86.8% SEN 93.1% SEN 91.6% SEN 93.3%

Attendance Attendance Attendance Attendance

Persistent Persistent Persistent Persistent ° o
Absentees 26.6% Absentees 19% Absentees 27% Absentees 1% 27.5%
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Growth A
The Trust focussed on two main areas of growth in 2022/23:

1. Toincrease the number of schools by bringing schools into the Trust, merging with another Trust or opening
a free-school.
2. To increase the number of children within all four HEART Schools.

The Trust did not achieve growth in terms of numbers of schools within the Trust. Advanced discussions and work

took place between HEART and ACES Academy Trusts with a view to a formal merger. The Regional Director from

the DfE signed off the merger but unfortunately HEART had to withdraw from the process. Due-dlllgence identified a
~number of risks that were unacceptable to HEART.

The reputation of all four Schools continue to grow within their communities and pupil demand is also growing,
particularly at Bedford Academy.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the-Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements. Further details regardmg the adoption of the
going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Promoting the success of the company

The Trust Board focused on promoting the success of the Trust and ensuring the HEART remains successful and
sustainable in the long-term. Fundamental to success is ensuring that employees are treated fairly and that we further
cultivate our aim to be the “Employer of Choice”. The Trust encourages sound and enduring engagement and
relationships with all stakeholders including pupils; parents; suppliers and customers and our wider communities.
HEART strives for excellence in all aspects of our operations and value our emphasis on ethical leadership in line
with the Trust values.

Financial review

The Trust holds funds in two broad categories, funds that are available for spending and other funds that are not
available for spending.

Spendable funds are in turn sub-categorised between those that are available for spending at the discretion of
Trustees (‘Unrestricted Funds’) and funds that are subject to condition or restriction (‘Restricted Funds').

Funds not available for spending

Funds not available for spending include the book value of fixed assets such as land, buildings and equipment. These
have a value and are therefore included as assets in the accounts but clearly the value cannot be spent. In common
with all academies and Local Authorities, the Trusts share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit must
also be reflected In its accounts but as this is not a conventional liability, it does not need to be deducted from
spendable funds. The Trust meets its obligations in respect of the LGPS by paying over pension contributions due as
calculated by the scheme's actuaries.

Spendable Funds

The Trust receives its income from a number of sources. The majority of income comes from central government via
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) who provide grant funding, based largely on student numbers, to
cover staffing and other general running costs. This is commonly referred to as the General Annual Grant (GAG). The
ESFA also provides additional grants that are earmarked for specific purposes (such as Pupil Premium which must
be used to raise the attainment of disadvantaged pupils). These grants appear in the accounts as DfE/ESFA grants.

The Trust also receives grant funding from the Local Authority where it undertakes responsibilities on behalf of the
Local Authority in respect of its students. This funding appears in the accounts as ‘Other government grants’.

Other income may also be received from parents (for example as contributions to trip or other costs) or from third
parties (for example income generated the Trusts bank account or from organisations who are charged for their use
of the Trusts facilities).
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Income received from the ESFA and the Local Authority is collectively categorised as ‘Restricted Funds’ on the basis
that such funds have conditions attached in how they are spent and reported. Other income from third-parties may be
categorised as restricted or unrestricted; the category depends on whether the funds come to the Trust with conditions
attached or whether they are available for spending at the discretion of Trustees.

The following balances held were held at 31 August:

Fund Category 2023 2022
: £000 £'000

GAG : Restricted General Funds : 1,286 © 1,185
Other DfE/ESFA/LA Grants _ Restricted General Funds - -
Sub-total General Restricted Funds 1,286 1,185

Unspent Capital Grants Restricted Fixed Asset Fund . 407 433
Other Income Unréstricted General Fund 1,401 1,230
* Sub-Total Spendable Funds 3,094 2,848

Endowment Restricted Endowment Fund 477 861
Net Book Value of Fixed Assets Restricted Fixed Asset Fund 39,249 39,764
Finance lease Restricted Fixed Asset Fund (847) (823)
Share of LGPS Deficit Réstricted Pension Reserve 279 (3,094)
Total All Funds 42,252 39,556

During the year under review, general restricted funds increased by £101k (2022: increased by £37k) and unrestricted
general funds increased by £171k (2022: increased by £119k). After LGPS valuation adjustments, depreciation and
capital income and expenditure, everall funds increased by £2,696k (2022: increased by £8,558k).

Financial Performance in 2022/23

The Trustees approved a revenue budget deficit for 2022/23 of £555k, approximately 16% of the reserves held by the
Trust at that point. The budget deficit included a revenue contribution to the capital fund of £685k but excluded capital
income and expenditure, depreciation and any impact of the annual actuarial pension revaluation. The aim of the
deficit budget was:

- Investment in school buildings to help ensure high-quality, uninterrupted teaching and learning.

- To help mitigate the destabilising effects of the COVID-19 pandemic.

- To fund ongoing school improverment measures and help ensure the provision of high-quality education to
all children attending a HEART school.

- Investment in systems and capacity to ready the Trust for growth.

- Tofund longer-term revenue-generating and cost-saving measures.

Revenue Account
The actual like-for-like net revenue deficit for 2022/23 was £138k. The positive variance of £419k was largely the
result of:

- Salary cost underspend of £243k, accrued in part as a result of the challenge of recruiting to vacant posts.

- Deferring £200k of investment in a new 3G football pitch (Bedford Academy). Subject to approval the new

pitch will be built in 2023/24.
- Unbudgeted ‘growth funding’ of £60k (Shackleton Primary) as a result of a change in pupil numbers.
- Expansion of pupil intake at the Shortstown Primary nursery provision - £34k.

The budget incorporated several key financial performance indicators. This included payroll costs (excl FRS 102
adjustments arising from annual valuation) as a % of total revenue not exceeding 80%. The actual payroll cost % for
the year was 76% (76% in 2021/22).
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The revenue account for 2021/22 included the following COVID-related transactions:
- £143k of expenditure funded by the ESFA COVID Recovery Premium.
- £27k from the National Tutoring Programme to fund tutors (all schools)

Balance Sheet
In addition to day-to-day revenue expenditure the Trust also invested in capital additions of £1,139k (£2,426k in
2021/22). Capital expenditure included:

_ - Refurbishment of Bedford Academy to accommodate a growing demand for places at the school. Total -
£423k.
- Cyclical replacement of ICT equipment (all schools). Total - £200k.
- Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) fire-improvement works at Shackleton. Total - £36k.
- Replacement minibus. Total - £41k.
- Replacement CCTV system at Bedford Academy. Total - £36k.

Trustees agreed the refurbishment projects would be funded from the Trust Endowment Fund.
Capital additions were offset by depreciation of £1,654k (£1,285k in 2021/22).

The HEART net asset position increased by £2,696k. The long-term asset balance reflects the actuarial asset on the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Note 21). An annual revaluation was completed in September 2023, decreasing
the net liability by £3,373k, from £(3,094)k to £279k making it an asset. The impact on HEART of the increase in
liability will only be realised in 2023 when.the employers pension contribution rates are due to be adjusted. '

The Trust cash position fell from £3,942 to £3,890k. The fall was reflective of the decision to carry a deficit budget
and invest reserves in the Trust schools. The cash position of the Trust at year-end remained healthy. Whilst cash
days — a measure of cash against annual expenditure — reduced to approxlmately 75 days, the year—end position
remained well above the minimum acceptable reserve balance.

Reserves polic

The principal policy on reserves is that accumulation of unspent GAG balances should not breach any limits thereon
set out in the Funding agreement. The level of reserves should never be in deficit.

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust annually. This review encompasses the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The Trustees have
determined that an appropriate level of free reéserves should be maintained to provide sufficient working capital to
cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies
such as urgent maintenance. The carrying value of reserves should balance the benefit of current spending with the
risks the reserves are designed to cover. Levels of reserves which are too high tie up money which should be spent
on current school activities. Levels of reserves which are too low may put the future activities of the school at risk.

Trustees aspire to a minimum level of unrestricted reserves that reflects the higher of 30 days of equivalent annual
Trust expenditure or £1.5 million.

Whilst the spendable reserves should be limited to a level where the use in the future is known, there is an
overriding need to ensure that value for money is achieved.

Investment policy

There are no investments held beyond cash and short-term money market deposits retained with the major UK
clearing banks. Speculative investments are not permitted.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Audit and Risk Committee undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to which the Trust is exposed. They
identify systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions which should mitigate any potential impact on
the Trust. The internal controls are then implemented and subsequent appraisal will review their effectiveness and
progress against risk mitigation actions. In addition to the annual review, the Audit and Risk Committee will also
consider any risks which may arise as a result of a new area of work being undertaken by the Trust.
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~ Arrisk register is maintained at the Trust level which is reviewed termly by the Audit and Risk Committee. The risk
" register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the Trust and the
actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system.

The Trustees have implemented a range of systems to continually assess risks that the Trust faces, and have
developed policies and procedures to mitigate those risks. Where significant financial risk still remains, Trustees have
ensured they have adequate insurance cover, The Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls and this
is explained in more detail in the Governance Statement.

External events - the COVID-19 pandemic, the war in Ukraine, changes in government paolicy, the climate crisis —
have all directly and indirectly contributed to a more uncertain environment in recent years.

- The majority of pupils attending Trust schools are from communities that are in the bottom 10% of deprivation
and who are more vulnerable to changes in the external environment. The Trust actively supports vulnerable
families with a range of measures including a freeze in food prices, loan laptops, the provision of free school

" -uniform for new starters and signposting to relevant local agencies.

- Therisk of deteriorating éducational dutcomes increased as a direct result of COVID-19. Barriers to effective -
learning at that time included a higher than average percentage of the children in the HEART schools with
limited or no access o computers or the internet at home; the capacity of parents to support effective home-
learning during lockdowns; and the disruption caused by the introduction of COVID-secure measures on
normal school life. A range of measures have since been introduced to counter the effects of the COVID
lockdowns including formalised catch-up plans, a loan laptop scheme, intervention groups and oniine
software packages designed to supplement classroom learning.

- Lack of really effective support for 0-5 year olds is putting increased pressures on the three Primaries in the
. Trust. Linked to this risk is an increase in additional needs for children entering education due in part to the
upheaval families have had to endure over the last three years. External agencies are not always coping and
more and more is falling onto schools. This is at a time when all schools are also still catching up with lost
leaming from the pandemic. '

- The financial impact of external events has been significant, resulting in reduced income (for example,
catering sales, community lettings) and increased costs. The recent and rapid increase in inflation led to
demands for commensurate increaseés in salary. Trustees fully support the principle that staff should be paid
a fair wage and accept this" will in the short-term increase the risk of in-year deficits. The budgeting,
forecasting and reporting processes, including scrutiny by the Executive team and Trustees of actual financial
performance, and investment in climate and sustainability measures mitigates the risk.

- The Trust must comply with'a wide variety of statutory and other obligations within the various regulatory
frameworks that it operates under, whether relating to matters of property and estates, finance, taxation,
health and safety, data, cyber-security and a host of other aspects. The Executive team is focused on
ensuring full compliance within the Trust's Risk Management Strategy. Risks of compliance failure are
mitigated by the engagement of suitably qualified employees and external expertise adopting a methodical
and proportionate approach to compliance matters. The Trust undertakes a significant programme of self-
assessment and benefits from both external and internal audit programmes to bring reassurance. Ultimately,
matters of compliance are overseen by the Audit and Risk Committee which reports to the Board of Trustees.

- Trustees are also very conscious that the above factors are likely to have a detrimental impact on staff
wellbeing and workload. School leaders agree that staff wellbeing must remain a priority and measures have
been introduced and will continue to evolve, including a Trust Staff Wellbeing strategy, to mitigate the risk.

Other notable financial risks:

The risk resulting from the company’s share of the LGPS deficit is managed by following the advice of the scheme's
actuaries, specifically as regards the level of contributions payable, ensuring that annual budgets are drawn up to
reflect the actuary’s advice.

As the nature of the financial instruments dealt with by the company is relatively simple (bank balances, debtors and
“trade” creditors), Trustees consider the associated risk in this area to be minimal.
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Fundraising practices -

The Trustees are committed to ensuring that fundraising activities are carried out in a responsible and ethical manner.
Any fundraising undertaken by the Trust must be done in a manner that seeks to ensure that it is not intrusive or
persistent.

Individual academies organise fundraising events.and appeals on behalf of the Trust, some of which may be
supported by a Parent-Teacher Association. The individual Academy will oversee and co-ordinate the activities of our
supporters both within the academy and in the wider community.

Fundraising events and appeals may include one or more of the following:

- Letters to parents.noting a voluntary contribution to a trip or event would be welcome.
- - Events organised by staff, students or a school Parent-Teacher Association.
.- . Student-led events with the objective of raising funds for charity.
- Engagement with corporate partners for sponsorship.

~ Contact is made through letters to parents, email, academy newsletters, the Trust websites and via students. Contact
may be direct or via a Parent-Teacher Association. The Trust does not use professional fundraisers or involve
commercial participators.

There have been no complaints about fundraising activity this year.

The Trust complies with the Fundraising Regulator's Code of Fundraising Practice and UK law.

Financial Performance - Looking Ahead

In July 2023 the Trustees approved a budget deficit before savings for 2023/24 of £886k, approximately 30% of the
reserves held by the Trust at that point. The budget deficit included a revenue contribution to the capital fund of £693k.
The deficit excluded capital income and expenditure, depreciation and any impact of the annual actuarial pension
revaluation. The aim of the deficit budget for 2023/24 was: '

- Ongoing capital investment works at Bedford Academy.

- To continue to mitigate any destabilising effects of the COVID-19 pandemlc and support education catch-up
and recovery initiatives.

To fund ongoing scheol improvement measures and help ensure the provision of high-quality education to
all children attending a HEART school. .
- To strengthen existing work already being done by the Trust in our communities.

- Ongoing investment in systems and capacity to ready the Trust for growth.

Factors that may significantly impact the Trust's financial position over the next 1-3 financial years include:

- The macro-economic environment and the impact on public finances of changes to fiscal and monetary
policy. Unfunded cost inflation will ultimately feed through to decisions on affordability of school staff and
resources. ’

- Growth of the Trust. New schools joining the Trust will have a direct and indirect impact on the financial
position of the Trust. HEART is in a strong position to manage growth and adjust accordingly.

- Funding

o The impact on funding from the ongoing SEND review and the introduction of the ‘hard’ National
Funding Formula.

o Lower than predicted pupil numbers, particularly Bedford Academy sixth form given the strength of
competition in the local area.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (SECR

 TABLE?2 . C .
UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use :
data for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
August 2023
EEKWL%y consumption used to calculate emissions 2 496,635 3,001,261 3,658,643
Energy consumption break down (kWh) (optional):
* gas 1,456,118 1,634,674 1,719,743
* electricity 1,024,501 1,442,235 1,394,813
» fuel oil 637,323
« transport fuel T - 16,016 14,352 6,764

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Gas consumption 266 298 315
Owned transport - mini-buses ' 2 1 1
Total Scope 1 268 300 316
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Purchased electricity : 212 279 . 296

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Business travel in employee owned vehicles 1 1 0
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 481 580 737
Intensity ratio Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.18 0.23 0.30

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2023 UK Government’s Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the recommended
ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to Improve energy efficiency

During 2021/22 Trustees agreed to elevate the priority given to climate and sustainability and position it at the centre
of a revised set of leadership aspirations’ for the Trust.

Over the course of 2022/23 -

- The CFO was appointed as the lead for Climate and Sustainability for the Trust. All schools and central
support teams appointed Climate and Sustainability leads to support delivery of the strategy.

- The CFO joined the Department for Education Sustainability and Climate Change Stakeholder Engagement
group and continued working closely with the UK Schools Sustainability Network (UKSSN).

- Solar (PV), electric vehicle charging points and LED lights were installed throughout the Trust estate.

- Roof replacement works at Cauldwell and Shackleton were completed

- All Trust schools were surveyed to identify potential capital projects for 2022/23 that will continue the
improvement in carbon footprint.
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In 2023/24 the Trust will:

- Publish a revised Sustainability Action Plan aligned to the UN Sustainable Development Goals with specific
targets for energy and waste reduction, )

-~ Convene a ‘Climate Taskforce’ and ‘Green Governor Group’ to strengthen action, governance and
accountability.

- Commence work with the Green Schools Project in the delivery of climate education.

- Commence work with Climate Adapted Pathways for Education (CAPE) to support further improvement to
Climate Change Education.

- Invést’in a new grounds improvement strategy to improve biodiversity in our outdoor space.

- . Investin the Bedford Academy Building Energy Management System to improve efficiency and reduce waste. -

- Work with suppliers to develop our understanding of scope 3 emissions and how we can measure and reduce
them in future years. : : :

Plans for the future

Priorities moving forward build from work that started in previous years.

A key area remains ac'célerating the progress made by all pupils in terms of pandemic-related lost leaming. Trust
schools have bespoke School Development Plan’s (SDP) which identifies the strategies that will be used to catch up
on lost learning.

The Trust will continue to develop a more sustainable approach to how it operates. Climate and sustainability will
become a core part of Trust and School culture, integrated at all levels from the Board of Trustees to the staff on the
ground, pupils and students. :

Early Years

. Research continues to show that children in early years from deprived communities were disproportionately impacted
by the Covid pandemic. The Trust has invested in the 50Things project to support parental engagement with their
young children. Work will continue to support and strengthen the work of local nurseries and the Shortstown nursery
offer. '

High Needs Provision :

The last few years highlighted the challenges our schools face with increasing numbers of children joining with Special
Educational Needs (SEND). Bedford is short on special school provision, exacerbated by further delays in the
construction of a new local special school. Bedford Borough remains exceptionally stretched meaning that more and
more responsibility for this critical provision Is at school level. The Trust will continue to invest in a range of projects
looking at different strategies to support all children no matter the challenges they present.

¢ Cauldwell and Shackleton will continue to offer a high-needs ‘Hub’ provision that has shown to have positive
impact on the most vuinerable pupils.

o Shortstown will continue their ‘Nurture’ offer for children that need extra support to access the mainstream
curriculum.

Growth

The Trust has built strong foundations with all current schools inspected by OFSTED and graded as offering a ‘Good'’
educational experience. HEART also has very strong finance and operations teams. However, the Trust does not
currently have capacity to support a School that is judged to need extensive educational support. The options available
to HEART for growth are:

o Merging with a Trust that has strong educational outcomes so they can add educational capacity.
» Identifying strong local schools that will also add educational capacity.

Both options will be actively explored in 2023/24. The Trust will not look to take on any sponsored academies.
Funds held as custodian trustee

No funds are held on behalf of others.
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Auditor
In so far as the Trustées are aware:

+ there ié no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and
« the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company
directors, on 07 December 2023 and signed on the Board’s behalf by:

Mr D Hoare
Chair of Trustees
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Scope of responsibility

As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Heart Academies Trust has an effective
and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectlves and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

. The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Heart
Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also responsible for reporting to
_ thé Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the year. Attendance
during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

“Outofa :

T Trustee ‘.Appm‘nfed ) ‘A,R‘e.sjlgne‘d 1 Meetﬁmgs gtte_n_ded possible

E

Mr D Hoare (Chalr of Trustees)

Mrs J Webster

Mrs S Clark

Mr L Spencer

Mrs S Graham

DrAlLee

Ms H Nuttall

Mrs E Graham-Law - 11/09/2023 .
Mrs L. Macdonald 16/01/2023

COoOBhW-WNW
. NoO AR AEAMDBDRD

Total . o L e 0

The Trust’s risk exposure, financial position and impact on school improvement is reviewed at each of the meetings
of the Board following detailed review by the respective sub-committee. Effective financial oversight is enhanced by
the publication of monthly management accounts to all Trustees.

Conflict of interest

. The Trust philosophy is to work to avoid conflicts of interest wherever possible. In circumstances where there is a
clear benefit to our schools the Trust has a cléar policy on how this should be managed, taking account of guidance
In the Academy Trust Handbook. Trustees, Governors and all staff involved in purchasing goods or services are asked
to declare any interests on an annual basis. All declarations are recorded in the Trust Register of Interests. The
Register is available to key personnelincluding the Finance team to support day-to-day management and governance
of the Trust.

Governance reviews
As a matter of best practice academy trusts should be carrying out a self-assessment annually, and commissioning
independent external reviews of governance routinely, as part of a wider programme of self-assessment and

improvement in subsequent years.

The Board underwent a full, independent, governance review in 2022 led by the Confederation of School Trusts
(CST). The review found the following:

‘The governance of the Trust works very effectively. There is a strong professional relationship between the Trust
Board, the Executive Team and the Local Advisory Boards. Governance at all tiers is open and transparent. Each tier
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of govemance knows its role and fulfils it well. Compliance is strong and documentation thorough. The Chair is
passionate and committed to the Trust and Trust governance is very well supported by the Clerk to the Trust Board.
Safeguarding is a strength of the Trust. Risk is given prominence and managed well although the reporting of risk
needs review to ensure the impact of mitigations is considered. Consideration should be given to succession planning
at all levels of governance. The Trust Board is currently small for the planned expansion of the Trust so increasing
the size of the Board should be considered. Some of the current governance arrangements are unlikely to be
sustainable as the Trust grows, so consideration needs to be given as to how the governance of the Trust will need
to change. How the existing Local Advisory Boards are managed through the process will need sensitive leadership,
detailed planning and effective communication.’

In addition, the Academy Trust annuaily’ reviews .the roles and responsibilities of Trustees, assigning Trustees as
‘links' to key development areas. This enables Trustees to effectively monitor the development of the Academy. The
Trust has reviewed the Scheme of Delegation and reviewed the membership, roles and responsibilities of its Local
Advisory Boards (LAB), the.equivalent of the more traditional Local Governing Body (LGB). A revised calendar of
training for Trustees and Governors has alsc been introduced covering safeguarding, data, OFSTED and finance.

The Finance and Operations Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. Its purpose is to assist
and support the Govemning Board, énsuring sound oversight is exercised over the management of the Academy's
finances and resources. Attendance at meetings of the Finance and Operations Committee during the year was as
follows:

Trustee _ S L .,:Appoiﬁtgfi A ‘-‘R'e'si"g'_ngd' 1 Meetmgsattended lr?ousts?;lz
MrD Hoare (Chalr ofTrustees) . : I - T 3
Mrs S Clark ‘ 1 1
Mrs J Webster 1 1
Mrs S Graham . : . 1 3
Mrs L Macdonald 16/01/2023 1 1
Mrs E Graham-Law & : 11/09/2023 0 0

The Risk and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. The Committee’s purpose is to
ensure the Trust has robust risk management policies and procedures, that the Trust has a strong system of internal
controls and that such controls are regularlyaudited.by independent experts. Attendance at meetings of the Risk and
Audit Committee during the year was as follows:

Trustee . 4 - .Appqint'ed. | ,Rvgssg__n‘ed_' Mge;.:tgngf_?t'te‘nded 'j{.possible ‘
Ms H Nuttall (Commlttee Cha:r) 3 3

Mr D Hoare (Chair of Trustees) 3 3

Mrs J Webster 2 3
Total | . o S B N . : S g
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Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to educational and wider
societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in retumn for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources provides ‘good value for money over the course
of each academic year, and regularly reports to the Board of Trustees where value-for-money could be improved.

A key element to achieve this objective is the setting of the Trusts annual budget, which includes reference to external
benchmarking data where available. Annual budgets are based on curriculum staffing plans and detailed department
plans which are reviewed and challenged to ensure they meet the needs of each Academy and Its students. The
curriculum plan and department plans are driven by the overall Academy Development Plan. Budget setting also
includes a review by the Chief Operating Officer (COO) of the Trust Estates plan, developed using detailed third-party
school condition surveys and feedback from more regular maintenance and inspection work. Budget Is allocated to
ensure the Trust maintains a safe, secure, estate compliant with all relevant regulations.

Monthly management reports are prepared by the Finance Office and are reviewed by the Chief Finance Officer and
the Finance & Operations Committee at their termly meetings. Management accounts are distributed to Trustees on
a monthly basis in full accordance with the Academy Trust Handbook. Trustees monitor the reserves levels in order
to ensure that they are sufficient to support the development plans for the Trust.

Budget holders have delegated responsibility for ensuring value-for-money within their area of responsibility and are
held to account for planning and managing their budgets. Monthly financial reports are provided to budget holders to
facilitate this.

In addition to robust budgeting and financial reporting:

- Services and contracts are appraised or renegotiated in a timely manner to ensure the best mix of quality
and cost effectiveness.

- Major purchases and contracts are always tendered. Purchases in excess of £10,000 must be supported
with a detailed business case and by 3 quotes or a formal tender process.

- All orders are reviewed by the Trust Finance department to ensure spend is within agreed limits to approved
- suppliers and that volume discounts or purchasing agreement contracts are utilised where available.

- Longer-term agreements (greater than 1 year) are only entered into where it is felt that such an agreement
would benefit the Trust.

- Income generating activities — Catering and Community Lettings — are frequently reviewed to ensure
revenues and margins are appropriate and aligned to the needs and values of the Trust.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in Heart Academies Trust for the period 01 September 2022 to 31 -
August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financiat and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the
view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the period 01 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.
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The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. tn
particular it includes:

+ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

« regular reviews by the Finance and Operations Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

« setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

« clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

» delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

» identification and management of risks.

* Independent internal audit.

In 2020 the Board of Trustées considered the need for a specific Internal audit function and appointed an experienced
intemal auditor, TIAA Ltd. Checks carried out by TIAA Ltd during 2022/23 included testing of:

Business planning

Network security (remote workmg)
Payroll

Regulatory compliance
Procurement

Post-Covid tutoring

Trustees were satisfied that TIAA delivered an appropriate schedule of work. No material control weaknesses were
noted from the programme of work. -

In 2023/24 TIAA will be supporting the Trust to' undertake ‘assurance mapping’ to help ensure the adequacy of
oversight of key areas of Trust work.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer, -has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by: .

the work of the internal auditor;

the work of the external auditor,

the financial management and governance self-assessment process

the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsmlllty for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Risk & Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 07 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr D Hoare Mr D Morris
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

As accounting officer of HEART Academies Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust
Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the
funding agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including
responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust's Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use
of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to

date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees
and ESFA. . .

Mr D Morris

Accounting Officer

07 December 2023
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The trustees (who are also the directors of HEART Academies Trust for the purposes of company faw) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the Financial Statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts. Direction 2022 to 2023 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and  applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the charitable company and -of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period.

" In preparing these Financial Statements, the Trustees are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

«» observe the methods and principles in the Charmes SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2022 to .
2023;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements; and

« prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the  --

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
" charitable company's transactions and disclose -with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for saféguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
" steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are respbnsiblé for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the mainténance-and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on’ the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Apprdyed by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 07 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:
Q Wf Z j C/’\

Mr D Hoare
Chair of Trustees
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HEART ACADEMIES
TRUST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of HEART Academies Trust for the year ended 31 August 2023 which
comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and notes to the
Financial Statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
‘Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
‘Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and.Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its
incoming resources and application of résources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with Umted Kingdom General]y Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared-in:accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and '

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable

law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of

the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are Independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the
. ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements in-the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
- Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report. .

Other information i

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Trustees are:responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report. Our opinion on the Financial Statements doas not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the Financial Statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

‘We have nothing to report in this regard.
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HEART ACADEMIES
TRUST (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year for
which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the Financial Statements; and

- the Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report, including the incorporated strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receaved
from branches not visited by us; or

- the Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal confrol as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to-fraud or error. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Trustees
are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend
to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists: Misstatements can arise from fraud or -
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could.reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

- Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and claims.

- Enquiry of management to identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

- Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

- Reviewing internal assurance reports.

- Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

- Auditing the risk of management override of controls, including through testing journal entries and other
adjustments for appropriateness, and evaluating the business rationale of significant transactions outside the

- normal course of business.
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HEART ACADEMIES
TRUST (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’'s website at: https:/
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
Members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's Members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Louise Hallsworth FCA (Senior Statutory Aud|tor) . ‘
for and on behalf of Baxter & Co .11 December 2023

Chartered Certifled Accountants

Statutory Auditor Lynwood House
Crofton Road
Orpington
Kent
BR6 8QE
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO HEART ACADEMIES TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 13 May 2022 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we
have carried out an engagement.to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by HEART Academies Trust during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to
the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to HEART Academies Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the HEART Academies Trust and ESFA those
matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than HEART Academies Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this
report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of HEART Academies Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant
The accounting officer is responsible, under the réquirements of HEART Academies Trust's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 15 January 2010 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received-is applied for the purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are éstablished in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance,
and are to obtain limited assurance and report-in -accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period-1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. :

Approach B

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts Issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter. :

The .objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity. . .

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtair assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

Review of payments to staff;

Review of payments to suppliers and other third parties;

Review of grant and other income streams;

Review of some key financial control procedures;

Discussions with finance staff;

Consideration of the record maintained by the Accounting Officer of the oversight they have exercised,;
Consideration of the programme of internal scrutiny implemented by the Academy Trust in order to comply
with its obligations under 3.1 of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, issued by the ESFA.

-97-



HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO HEART ACADEMIES TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Conclusion .
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

gMe, 2 C s

Reporting Accountant
Baxter & Co

Lynwood House
Crofton Road
Orpington

Kent

BR6 8QE
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

;- 1,568

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Endowment Total Total
funds General Fixed asset funds 2023 2022
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income and endowments
from: .
Donations and capital grants 3 1 - 252 - 253 467
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational .
operations 4 404 17,749 - - 18,153 16,296
Other trading activities 5 323 - : - - 323 218
Investments 6 106 - - - 106 5
Total : _ 834 17,749 252 - 18,835 16,986
Expenditure on: 4
Raising funds 7 - 53 - - 53 39
Charitable activities: .
- Educational operations "9 663 17,358 1,654 - 19,675 18,705
Total 7 663 17,411 1,654 - 19,728 18,744
Net income/(expenditure) 171 338 (1,402) - (893) (1,758)
. Transfers between funds - 20 - (453) 837 . (384) - -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains on defined .
benefit pension schemes 22 - 3,589 - - 3,589 10,316
Net movement in funds 171 3,474 (565) (384) 2,696 8,558
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 1,230 - : (1,909) 39,374 861 39,556 30,998
1,401 .. 38,809 . - 477 42,252 39,556

Total funds carried forward
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Comparative year information Unrestricted Restricted funds: Endowment Total

Year ended 31 August 2022 funds General Fixed asset funds 2022
Notes - £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants 3 9 3 455 - 467 -

Charitable activities: _

- Funding for educational operations 4 ’ 387 15,909 - - 16,296

Other trading activities -5 218 oo- - - 218

Investments : 6 : 5 - .- - . 5

Total : 619 15912 455 - 16,986

Expenditure on: , . ‘ . _

Raising funds : 7 - 39 - - 39

Charitable activities:

- Educational opeyations 9 - 500 16,920 1,285 - 18,705

Total : T 7 ... 500 16,959 1,285 .- 18,744

Net income/(expenditure) e 119 (1,047) (830) - (1,758)

Transfers between funds ... .. -1 20 - (481) - 870 (389) -

Other recognised gainsl(losseé)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension . .

schemes 22 i - -10,316 - - 10,316

Net movement in funds 119 8,788 - 40 - (389) 8,558

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward .- 1,111 (10,697) 39,334 1,250 30,998

Total funds carried forward . - . oY 1,230 (1,909) 39,374 861 39,556
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13
Current assets
Stock 15
Debtors 4 16

Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due witliin:one year 17
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 18

Net assets excluding pension asset/(liability)

" Defined benefit pension scheme

asset/(liability) .22

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust:

Restricted funds ' 20
- Fixed asset funds ’
- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

- Endowment funds

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds T 20

Total funds

The Financial Statements on pages 29 to 58 were approved by the
mber 2023 and are signed on their behalf by:

07

2

Chair of Trustees

Company registration number 06969741 (England and Wales)

2023

£'000

12
895
3,890

4,797

(1,296)

£000

39,249

" 3,501

42,750

(777)

41,973

279

42,252

38,809
1,286
279
477

40,851

1,401

42,252 -

2022

£'000

1,310
3,942

5,259

(1,630)

£'000

39,764

3,629

43,393

(743)

42,650

(3,094)

39,556

39,374
1,185
(3,094)

861

38,326

1,230

39,556 .

Trustees and - authorised for issue on




HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

STATEMENT OF CAS‘H» FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Capital funding received from sponsors and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash used In investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long term bank loan

Capital element of hire purchase.and finance leases

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the

reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2023
£'000 - £'000
690
106
240
12
(1,139)
(781)
15
24
39
(52)
3,942
3,890

2022
£'000 £'000
- 855
5
455
(2,426)
(1,966)
46
- 823
869
(242)
4,184
3,942
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HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

11

1.2

13

Accounting policies

-A summary of the principal accounting poficies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where

noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS: 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of

‘Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their Financial Statements in accordance with the

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS
102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material

uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concem. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the Financial Statements and have concluded that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to“continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. Thus
they continue to adopt the.going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entittement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably. .

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the period for which it is

. receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in" the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

14

15

Accounting policies (Continued)

Expenditure )
Expenditure is recognised once there is a iegal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.

‘Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and

shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activify and
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and

- depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds . ) )
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and

" includes-costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £1,000 or more per item (or less if they form part of a larger purchase or project where the total
cost exceeds £10,000) are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and
any provision for impairment.

‘Wheré tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or

from the private sector, they are included .in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial

Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired / funded .

by other income, the fixed asset fund is also credited. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged. dlrectly

" to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of FlnanCIalActlvmes

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than leasehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years
Assets under construction not depreciated
Plant and machinery 3 - 10 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles 5 years




HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies {Continued)

Fixed Asset Transfer from Predecessor Schools

‘Where fixed assets were transferred to the charitable company from the predecessor school, these have been

included at a value determined in accordance with the policy described:

Land
Where land is owned (or occupied under the terms of a long term lease), subject to a legally binding restriction

. .as to its use, it is included at fair value, based on its existing use.

Buildings
In accordance with the requirements of FRS102, specialist buildings transferred from predecessor schools are
recognised at their fair value at the time -of transfer. Future depreciation is charged over the estimated

remaining useful life of the buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed assét is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts_are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will
pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
provide.

Leased assets
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessees. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recogmsed as assets based on the value of the minimum lease
payments. The related liability is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments
are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements. The interest is charged to the statement of financial
activities so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals under operating leases are éharged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments
The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The flnanmal assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

‘Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settiement has already taken place and

there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

-35-



HEART ACADEMIES TRUST
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.9

1.10

1.1

Accounting policies . (Continued)

Stock

Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
price less further costs to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stock.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extént that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

Pensions benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the-Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme .

_('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the ,

1.12

113

assets and the liabilities are held separately from those of the Academy Trust. '

The TPS is-an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Govermnment
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer .scheme with no .underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial
activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate

" used to discount the benefit obligations.- The difference between the interest income ori the scheme assets

and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/
donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Agency Arrangements

Where the Academy Trust acts as agent in collecting and / or distributing from the ESFA or others, and
subsequent disbursements are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities as the Trust does not have
control over charitable application of the funds. The funds received and paid, and any balances held are
disclosed in note 29.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accountlnq estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accountmg
‘estimates and assumptions will, by definition, se€ldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial .basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 22, will impact on the carrying amount of the pension.liability. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roli forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement
In preparing these Financial Statements, the Trustees have not needed to exercise any subjective judgements

that would be critical to the Academy Trust's Financial Statements.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2023 2022

£'000 £'000 - £'000 £'000

Private sponsorship - - - 3
Capital grants - 240 240 455
Other donations 1 12 13 9
1 252 253 467
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4

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Unrestricted . Restricted . Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
DfE/ESFA grants i
General annual grant (GAG) - - 14,319 14,319 13,327
Other DfE/ESFA grants: .
- UIFSM - 139 139 135
- Pupil premium - 938 938 872
- Others - 865 865 421
- © 16,261 16,261 . 14,755
Other government grants . :
Local authority grants - 1,163 1,163 852
Special educational projects - 16 16 69
- 1,179 1,179 921
COVID-19 additional funding
DfE/ESFA
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - - 173 173 95
Non-DfE/ESFA
- Other COVID-19 funding - L. - - 15
- 173 173 110
Other funding
Catering income 365 . - 365 336
- Trips income o : 39 - 39 51
- Other incoming resources - 136 136 123
404 136 540 510
Total funding _ , _ ) 404 17,749 18,153 16,296

The Academy Trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in the year from government support
schemes in response to the Coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under “COVID-19
additional funding”. The funding received for recovery premium covers £144k of staff and other costs and the
funding received for national tutoring programme covers £29k of staff and othér costs.
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5

Other trading activities

Hire of facilities .
Catering income

Income from facilities and services

Other income
RPA claims

Investment income

Short term deposits

Expenditure

Expenditure on raising funds

- Direct costs

Academy's educational operations

- Direct costs
- Allocated support costs

Net income/(expenditure) for the year Includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Fees payable to auditor for:

- Audit
- Other services

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds’ funds 2023 2022

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

199 - 199 154

26 - 26 11

40 - 40 19

25 - 25 - 34

33 - 33 -

323 - 323 218

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2023 2022

£'000 " £'000 £'000 £'000

106 - 106 5

‘ Non-pay expenditure  Total Total

Staff costs Premises Other 2023 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- 26 27 53 39

10,178 1,323 940 12,441 11,588

4,121 1,800 1,313 7,234 7,117
14,299 3,149 2,280 19,728 18,744 -

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

40 28

1,654 1,285

12 11

19 18

110 189

Net interest on defined benefit pension liability
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7 Expenditure . {Continued)

Included within expenditure are the following transactions:

Total Individual
items over

£5,000

2023 2023
£ £

Unrecoverable debts - total 55

Clarification — Whilé the majority” of disclosure in these accounts are rounded to £'000, the disclosure of
unrecoverable debts made is not. The value for the year is £55 (and not £55k).

8 Central services

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
« human resources;
. financial services;
. catering services;
« school improvement;
« facilities and premises.

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:
« percentage of GAG income of 5%.

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: . 2023 . 2022
: £'000 £'000

The Bedford Academy 592 4156
Cauldwell Lower School . 150 124
Shackleton Primary School 173 136
Shortstown Primary School . 140 109
1,055 784
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9

Charitable activities

Direct costs
Educational operations

Support costs A
Educational operations

Analysis of costs

Direct costs

Teaching and educational support staff costs
Staff development ’ ’
Depreciation

Technology costs

Educational supplies and services
Examination fees

Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

Support costs
Support staff costs

Defined benefit pension scheme - staff costs (FRS102 adjustment)

Staff development
Depreciation
Technology costs
Maintenance of premises and equipment ~ .-
Cleaning

Energy costs

Rent, rates and other occupancy costs
Insurance

Security and transport

Catering

Unrestricted

funds
£'000

35

628

663

Restricted
funds
£'000

12,406

6,606

19,012

Defined benefit pension scheme - finance costs (FRS102 adjustment)

Legal costs
Other support costs
Governance costs

Total Total
2023 2022
£000 £'000
12,441 11,588
7,234 7,117
19,675 18,705
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
10,178 - 9,743
95 134
1,323 1,028
105 63
439 297
151 108

6 73

144 142
12,441 11,588
4,015 3,143
106 1,376

21 31

331 257
334 353
378 329
51 44
589 365
326 276
72 65

58 32
439 374
110 189

15 1

356 240
33 32
7,234 7,117
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10 Staff
Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were:
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries o A .- 10,620 9,618
Social security costs : ) . 1,047 917
Pension costs . 2,420 2,193
Defined benefit pension scheme - staff costs (FRS102 adjustment) 106 1,376
Staff costs - employees . 14,193 14,104
Agency staff costs ’ ‘ . 63 150
Staff restructuring costs 43 8
Total staff expenditure 14,299 14,262
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments 2 -
Severance payments . 41 8
43 8

Severance payments
The Academy Trust paid 4 severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bands:

£0 - £25,000 ~
£25,001 - £50,000 1

Special staff severance paymehts :
Included in staff restructuring costs is one non-contractual special severance payment of £18,000 (2022: £nil).

Staff numbers ) '
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2023 2022

Number Number

Teachers , 147 141
Administration and support 262 256
Management 10 10
419 407
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10 Staff ) (Continued)
The number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows:

: 2023 2022

Number Number

Teachers 141 135

Administration and support 174 168

Management ‘ 10 10

325 313

II

Higher paid staff .
- The number of empioyees whose employee  benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2023 2022

Number Number

£60,000 - £70,000 6 4
£70,001 - £80,000 4 6
£80,001 - £80,000 2 -
£90,001 - £100,000 - 2
£100,001 - £110,000 2 1

Key management personnel
_ The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer
pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel
-for'théir services to the Academy Trust was £660,644 (2022: £463,255).

11 Trustees' remuneration and expenses

None of the Trustees have been paid remuneration or have received other benefits from an employment with
the Academy Trust. -

: During the year, no travel or subsistence payments (2022: £nil) were reimbursed or paid directly to any of the
Trustees (2022: O Trustees). ) .

Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set out within the related parties note.
12 Trustees' and officers' insurance

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy Trust
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers
indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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13  Tangible fixed assets

LeaseholdAssets under Plantand Computer  Fixtures, Motor Total
land and construction machinery equipment fittings & vehicles
buildings equipment
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost .
At 1
September :
2022 40,430 837 1,628 3,528 891 43 47,357
Reclassification . 425 (505) - - 80 - -
Additions 156 276 187 241 238 41 1,139
At 31 August
2023 41,011 608 1,815 - 3,769 ‘ 1,209 84 48,496
Depreciation
At1
September
2022 3,793 - 126 3,050 - 582 42 7,593
Charge for the : :
year 756 - 358 202 247 1 1,654
At 31 August
2023 4,549 - 484 3,342 829 43 9,247
Net book value
At 31 August .
2023 36,462 ‘ 608 1,331 427 380 41 39,249
At 31 August
2022 - 36,637 837 - 1,502 478 : 309 1 30,764

Finance leases

Included within the net book value above is £840k (2022 — £823k) relating to assets held under a finance

lease agreement. .
" “""Leasehold land is included above at its net book value of £5,927k.

14  Financial instruments

2023 2022

Instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss: £'000 £'000

. Carrying amount of financial assets : 4,486 4735
Carrying amount of financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost ’ 721 1,032
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15 Stock

Catering stock

16 Debtors

Trade debtors

VAT recoverable

Other debtors ‘
Prepayments and accrued income

17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Govermment loans

Net obligations-under finance lease and hire purchase contracts
Trade creditors .

Other taxation and social security

ESFA creditors

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Government loans ‘
Net obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts

2023
£'000

2022
£'000
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Analysis of loans

Not wholly repayable within five years by instalments
Wholly repayable within five years

Less: included in current liabilities

Amounts included above

" Loan maturity
Debt due in one year or less .
Due in more than one year but not more than two years
Due in more than two years but not more than five years
Due in more than five years "~ ‘.

Net obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Repayable within one year
Repayable between one and five years
Repayable after five years

Less: finance charges and interest allocated to future accounting periods

Net obligations )
Less: included in liabilities falling due within one year

Included above
19 Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2022
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2023

2023
£'000

2023
£'000

{Continued)

2022
£'000

16
30

2022
£'000

120
482
221

823

823
(120)

703

2022
£000
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19 Deferred income _ ‘ (Continued)

Deferred income relates to trip income received in advance of £7k (2022: £1k), rates income of £nil (2022:
£45K), Universal Infant Free School Meals funding received in advance of £85k (2022: £80k), Sports Premium
funding received in advance of £8k (2022: £27k), tech support of £nil (2022 £7k), Bedford grant funding £87k
(2022: £nil)-and other income of £8k (2022: £11k). - o

20 Funds .
' Balance at : Gains, Balance at
1. September’ . ‘losses and 31 August -
2022 Income Expenditure transfers 2023
: ..£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Restricted general funds

-General Annual Grant (GAG) 1,185 14,319 (13,765) (453) 1,286
UIFSM - - -3 -- 139 (139) - -
Pupil premiuin - - . 938 (938) - -

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 :

-funding . - .- 173 (173) - -
Other DfE/ESFA grants’ - .- 865 (865) - -
Other government grants - - - 1,179 (1,179) - -
Other restricted funds .- 136 (136) - -
Pension reserve (3,094) - (216) 3,589 C279

"(f,909) 17,749 (17.411) - 3,136 1,565
Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion 36,558 - (743) - 35,815
DfE group capital grants 1,440 240 (305) 185 1,560
Capital expenditure from GAG ' ' :
and other funds 1,031 - (566) 652 1,117
Restricted endewment fund < 345 12 (40) - 317
39,374 252 *(1,654) 837 38,809
Restricted endowment fund 861 - - (384) o 477
Total restricted funds 38,326 . 18,001 (19,065) 3,589 40,851
Unrestricted funds
General funds 1,230 834 (663) - 1,401
Total funds 39,556 18,835 (19,728) 3,589 " 42,252
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20

Funds ‘ ' (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
The Restricted General Funds are used to fund the general operating costs of the Academy Trust.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State (updated by a deed of variation dated 19 May 2015),
the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the.amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August
2023.

The Restricted LGPS Fund represents the Academy Trust's share of the LGPS Pension Fund deficit.

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund represents.the net book value of fixed assets £39,248k (2022: £38,941k),
plus the unspent element of capital funds :£407k (2022: £432k) and the finance lease £847k (2022: £823k).
When fixed assets are purchased the fund is increased and depreciation charges reduce the fund.

Unrestricted Funds represent balances ‘held at period end that can be applied at the discretion of the
Governors, to support any of the Academy Trust's charitable purposes.

The Academy Trust maintains and controls an endowment fund the purpose of which is to hoid for the benefit
of the Academy Trust. The fund was originally made up of sponsorship income of £1 million from the Bedford
Charity (The Harpur Trust) and £250k from Bedford College Further Education Corporation. The endowment
restriction on this fund has been removed meaning it can now be spent by the Academy Trust. The carrying
value at 31st August 2023 was £477k.

-48 -



b

HEART ACADEMIES TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) |
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

20

Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UlIFsSM =~

Pupil premium

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19
funding )

Other Coronavirus funding
Other DfE/ESFA grants

"Other government grants

Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

Inherited on conversion
DfE group capital grants

" Capital expenditure from GAG

and other funds

Restricted endowment fund
Restricted endowment fund
Total restricted funds
Unrestricted funds

General funds -

Total funds

Balance at

1 September
2021

£'000

1,148

(11.846)

(10,697)

37,301
1,222

811

39,334

1,250

29,887

1,111

30,998

|
|

Income
£'000

13,327
135
872

95
15
421
921
126

15,912

455

455

|

16,367

©

61

16,986

Expenditure
£'000

(12,809)
(135)
(872)

(95)
(15)
(421)
(921)
(126)
(1,565)

(16,959)

(743)
(237)

(305)

{1,285)

(18,244)

(500)

(18.744)

(Continued)

Gains, Balance at
losses and 31 August
transfers 2022
£'000 £'000
(481) 1,185
10,316 (3,084)
9,835 (1,909)

- 36,558

- 1,440

525 1,031

345 345

870 39,374

(389) 861
10,316 38,326

- 1,230

10,316 39,556
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20

Funds (Continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

2023 2022
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows: £'000 £'000
The Bedford Academy ’ - -
Cauldwell Lower School - , -
Shackleton Primary School ) Co- -
Shortstown Primary School - -
Central services . 3,164 3,276
Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve 3,164 3,276
Restricted fixed asset fund e 38,809 39,374 .
Pension reserve . : ' 279 (3,094)
Total funds . . 42,252 39,556

Restricted and unrestricted spendable income received to fund in-year activities undertaken by a specific
school are allocated to that school for budgeting and reporting purposes. This includes but is not limited to
annual GAG funding and other annual government grants. Spendable funds that have not been spent during
the course of an academic year are centrally pooled at the end of that'academic year thereby creating ‘pooled
reserves’ for unspent restricted and unrestricted funds. Disbursements from the pooled reserves in
subsequent years will be at the discretion of Trustees, subject to observing any specific fund restrictions that
may exist or other regulatory rulings. Disbursements from the pooled reserves would generally be reviewed
and agreed as part of the Trust's annual budget setting process. The carrying value of the pooled reserves
should balance the benefit of current spending with the risks the reserves are designed to cover. Levels of
reserves which are too high tié up money which should be spent on current school activities. Levels of
reserves which are too low may put the future activities of the schools at risk. The total level of the pooled
reserves should not fall below a minimum value, set and reviewed by Trustees on an annual basis.

The Trust also holds an endowment of £477k for the following purposes, previous -endowment: restrictions
having been lifted:

1. Incircumstances where the Trust is likely or foreseeably going to be in breach of its minimum reserve
limit disbursements from the endowment fund would be held back until such a time that these covenants are
no longer at risk.

2. Subject to certain conditions of the trust deed, Trustees have agreed that the balance of the
endowment fund can be used for:

- a. Delivery of Trustee-approved strategic long-term aims of the Trust.

b. Delivery of new, separately identifiable, capital projects. This must not include expenditure
required for the normal annual replacement of capital assets (i.e. this excludes replacement of computers
or classroom furniture).

c. Seed funding for new income-generating and/or cost-savmg initiatives to deliver long-term
retums to the Trust for an acceptable level of risk.
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20

21

Funds

Total cost analysis by acadehy

Expenditure incurred by'each academy during the year was as follows:

The Bedford Academy
Cauldwell Lower School
Shacklston Primary School

‘Shortstown Primary School

Central services

Analysis of net assets between

Fund balances at 31 August
2023 are represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Pension scheme asset

Total net assets

Fund balances at 31 August
2022 are represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

(Continued)
Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total
suppod staff ©  staff costs supplies depreciation 2023 2022
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
4,967 1,806 255 1,624 8,652 - 8,546
1,631 336 36 358 2,361 2,345
1,986 364 69 448 2,867 2,767
1,432 494 74 341 2,341 2,355
162 1,121 5 565 . 1,853 1,446
10,178 4,121 439 3,336 18,074 17,459
funds

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Endowment - Tota!
Funds General Fixed asset Funds Funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
; ; 39,249 . 39,249
1,401 2,512 407 477 4,797

- (1,174) (122) - (1_ ,296)

- (52) (725) - (777)
- 279 . - - 279
1,401 1,565 38,809 477 42,252
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Endowment Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds Funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 <~ £'000 £'000
- - 39,764 - 39,764
1,230 2,735 433 861 5,259

- (1,510) (120) - (1,630)

. (40) (703) - (743)

- (3,094) - - (3,094)

1,230 (1,909) 39,374 861 39,656
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22

Pension and similar obligations

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Bedford ‘Borough Council. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £266k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022: £244k) and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

introduction -
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Schéme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enroiment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and embloyer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions ‘are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme ‘ )

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration levy)

« total scheme liabilities (pensiofis:currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196, 100 mllhon giving a notionat
past service-deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional mvestment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% ‘above the rate of CPl. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of retumn including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,371k (2022: £1,234k).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
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22

Pension and similar obligations ‘ (Continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined bensfit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate (rustee-administered
funds. The total contributions are as hoted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22.1% for
employers and 5% to 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published
on GOV.UK.

Total contributions made 2023 2022
. : : £'000 £'000
Employer's contributions 1,049 959
Employees' contributions e 266 238
Total contributions ’ o0 1,315 1,197
Principal actuarial assumptions 2023 2022
. . ’ % %

Rate of increase in salaries e : 3.85t03.90 2.90t02.95
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.85t02.90 3.90t03.95
‘Discount rate for scheme liabilities 530 420t04.25

CPl inflation 28510290 290t02.95

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 2022
Years Years
Retiring today '
- Males . 211 220
- Females _ i 23.9 244
Retiring in 20 years .
- Males 22.1 229
- Females 25.5 26.1
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22

Pension and similar obligations

Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%

Life expectancy + 1 year- . °
Life expectancy - 1 year
Salary rate + 0.1%

Salary rate - 0.1%

‘Pension rate + 0.1%
Pension rate - 0.1%

Defined benefit pension scheme net asset/(liability)
Scheme assets

Scheme obligations

Net asset/(liability)

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme

Equities
Bonds
Cash
Property

Total market value of assets °

Thé actual return on scheme assets was £1,470,000 (2022: £(39,000)).

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Interest income

Interest cost
Administration expenses

Total operating charge

(Continued)

2022

2023
£'000 £'000
10,494 11,133
10,961 11,751
10,998 11,759
10,457 11,126
10,731 11,450
10,717 11,426
10,959 11,742
10,496 11,142
2023 2022
£000 £'000
11,003 8,344
(10,724) (11,438)
1279 (3,094)
2023 2022
Fair value Fair value
£000 £'000
6,967 4,992
1,994 1,892
425 304
1,617 1,156
1 1,003 8,344
2023 2022
£'000 £000
1,143 2,327
(379) (134)
489 323
12 8
1,265 2,524
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22 Pension and similar obligations

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2022
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial gain

Benefits paid

At'31 August 2023

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets

At 1-September 2022 S
Interest income v
Actuarial (gain)loss

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Benefits paid

Administration expenses

At 31 August 2023

(Continued)

2023
£'000 -

11,438
1,143
489
266

(2,498)

(114)

10,724

2023
£'000

8,344
379
1,091
1,049
266

(114)

(12)

11,003
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22

Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

Please note that the actuaries have incorporated an asset ceiling into the Employer's balance sheet.

The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefit available to the Employer in the form of refunds
or reduced future employer contributions.

Actuaries calculations assume that:

« There is no prospect of the Employer having an unconditional right to a refund of surplus on the basis .

that such a payment would be at the discretion of the Fund.
« The Employer will participate in the Fund indefinitely and is open to new-employees. We assume new
entrants continue to join the Fund such that a stable population is maintained..

Assumptions per academy:

The Bedford Academy:

« The present value- of the cost of future accrual in respect of the expected pertod of participation is
£28,416,000.

« The present value of pnmary contributions in respect of the expected period of partlmpatlon is
£35,436,000.

"« The potential economic benefit from future contribution reductlons is therefore nil.

Cauldwell Lower School:
« The present value of the cost of future accrual in respect of the expected period of participation is
£6,766,000.
« The present value of primary contnbutlons in respect of the expected period of partncnpatlon is
£8,311,000.
« The potential economic benefit from future contribution reductions is therefore nil.

Shackleton Primary School:
« The present value of the cost of future accrual in respect of the expected period of participation
£8,376,000.
« The present value of primary contributions in respect of the expected period of participation is
£11,173,000.
« The potential economic benefit from future contribution reductions is therefore nil.

Shortstown Primary School:
« The present value of the ¢ost of future accrual in respect of the expected period of participation is
£8,147,000.
"« The present value of primary contributions in respect of the expected period of participation is
£10,117,000.
« The potential economic benefit from future contribution reductions is therefore ml
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23  Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash fiow from operating activities

Notes
Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of
financial activities)
Adjusted for:
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Investment income receivable ' 6
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 22
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 22

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
(increase)/decrease in stocks
Decrease in debtors

" (Decrease) in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities -

24 Analysis of changes in net funds
1 September

2022

£000
Cash 3,942
Loans falling due within one year (6)
Loans falling due after more than one year (40)
Finance iease obligations (823)

3,073

25 Long-term commitments

Operating leases

2023
£'000

(893)

(252)
(108)
106
110

' 1,654
(5)

415
(339)

690

Cash flows
£'000

(52)

(3)
(12)
(24)
©n

2022
£'000

(1,758)

(455)
(5)

1,376

189
1,285 ~

266
(45)

855

31 August
2023

£000

3,890
(9)
(52)
(847)

2,982

At 31 August 2023 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due in two and five years

2023
£'000

2022
£'000
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26

27

28

29

Capital commitments

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the Financial Statements 340 432

At 31 August 2023, the Trust was committed to compieting the following projects:

« Cauldwell Primary School: fire alarm works, funded by CIF and reserves, with total expected costs of
£179k. Costs of £94k were incurred during the year, with anticipated costs to completion as at 31
August 2023 of £85k. .

» Shackleton Primary School: fire alarm works, funded by CIF and reserves, with total expected costs
of £236k. Costs of £100k were incurred during the year, with anticipated costs to completlon as at 31
August 2023 of £136k. .

+ Shackleton Primary School: fire improvements, funded by CIF and reserves, with total expected costs
of £119k. No costs were incurred during the year, with anticipated costs to completion as at 31 August
2023 of £119k.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust.and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
Trustees have an interest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

The Harpur Trust is a related party by virtue of the fact that it was a sponsor and member of the Academy
Trust throughout the period. During the year, income of £62,815 (2022: £42,637) was received from and
payments of £23,239 (2022: £10,515) were made to the Harpur Trust. There was no balance outstanding at
31 August 2023, .

In entering into these transactions, the Academy Trust has complied with the requirements of the ESFA's
Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event ot
it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and habllmes contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member.

Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2023 the Trust had an opening balance of £12,100 (2022: £28,770), has received
£20,084 (2022: £22,160) and disbursed £13,996 (2022: £38,830) from the fund. An amount of £18,188 (2022:
£12,100) is included within creditors: amounts falling due in less than one year relating to undistributed funds.
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